
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

 
Committee: Budget Planning Committee 
 

Date:  Tuesday 4 March 2025 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue: Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxon OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Edward Fraser 
Reeves (Chairman) 

Councillor Matt Hodgson (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Tom Beckett Councillor Gordon Blakeway 
Councillor Andrew Crichton Councillor Frank Ideh 
Councillor Rob Parkinson Councillor Rob Pattenden 
Councillor David Rogers Councillor Les Sibley 
Councillor Dom Vaitkus Councillor Barry Wood 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members      
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which 
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2025. 
 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements      
 
To receive communications from the Chairman. 
 
 

5. Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to address the meeting.  
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/


6. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 

7. Budget Monitoring Report (Pages 9 - 46)    
 
Report of Assistant Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
  
Purpose of report 
 
To report to the committee the council’s financial position at the end of the financial 
year 2024-2025. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Budget Planning Committee resolves: 
 
1.1 To note the contents of this report.    
 
 

8. Exclusion of Press and Public      
 
The following item contains exempt information as defined in the following 
paragraph of Part 1, Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972. 
 
3– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
Members are reminded that whilst the following item has been marked as exempt, it 
is for the meeting to decide whether or not to consider it in private or in public. In 
making the decision, members should balance the interests of individuals or the 
Council itself in having access to the information. In considering their discretion 
members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers.  
 
Should Members decide not to make a decision in public, they are recommended to 
resolve as follows:  
 
“That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public and press 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that, 
if the public and press were present, it would be likely that exempt information 
falling under the provisions of Schedule 12A, Part I, Paragraph 3 would be 
disclosed to them, and that in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.” 
 

9. Monthly Monitoring Report - Exempt Appendix (Pages 47 - 74)    
 
 

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon 
hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting. 

 
 

Information about this Meeting 



 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or 01295 
221534 prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 

Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Webcasting and Broadcasting Notice 
The meeting will be recorded by the council for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except when confidential or 
exempt items are being considered. The webcast will be retained on the website for 6 
months.  
 
If you make a representation to the meeting, you will be deemed by the council to have 
consented to being recorded. By entering the Council Chamber, you are consenting to 
being recorded and to the possible use of those images for and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes.  
 
The council is obliged, by law, to allow members of the public to take photographs, film, 
audio-record, and report on proceedings. The council will only seek to prevent this should 
it be undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
Please contact Matt Swinford, Democratic and Elections Team democracy@cherwell-
dc.gov.uk, 01295 221534  
 
Shiraz Sheikh 
Monitoring Officer 
 
Published on Monday 24 February 2025 
 

 
 

mailto:democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 
 

Budget Planning Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Budget Planning Committee held at Bodicote 
House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxon OX15 4AA, on 21 January 2025 at 6.30 pm 
 
Present: 
 
Councillor Edward Fraser Reeves (Chairman)  
Councillor Gordon Blakeway 
Councillor Andrew Crichton 
Councillor Frank Ideh 
Councillor Rob Pattenden 
Councillor David Rogers 
Councillor Les Sibley 
Councillor Dom Vaitkus 
Councillor Barry Wood 
 
 
Apologies for absence: 
 
Councillor Tom Beckett 
 
 
Also Present: 
 
Councillor Lesley McLean (Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and 
Regeneration) 
 
 
Also Present Virtually: 
 
Councillor Matt Hodgson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Rob Parkinson 
 
 
Officers:  
 
Michael Furness, Assistant Director Finance & S151 Officer 
Joanne Kaye, Head of Finance and Deputy Section 151 Officer 
Leanne Lock, Strategic Business Partner - Business Partnering & Controls 
Matt Swinford, Democratic and Elections Officer 
 
 

31 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

32 Minutes  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Budget Planning Committee - 21 January 2025 

  

 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
December 2024. 
 
 

33 Chairman's Announcements  
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 
 

34 Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 

35 Monthly Performance Report  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) submitted a report on 
the Council’s financial positions at the end of the financial year 2024/25. 
 
In introducing the report, the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and 
Regeneration advised the Committee that the Council’s forecast outturn 
position for 2024/25 was an overspend of £0.098k. The overspend was 
primarily due to variations in Law and Governance, Planning and 
Development, Property and Environmental Services.  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and Regeneration explained that 
there was an overspend within Environmental Services in relation to gate fees 
of £0.200m which was currently being reviewed and consideration being given 
to what level of market risk policy contingency available to help mitigate this. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and Regeneration advised the 
Committee that there was a projected in-year underspend of £0.411m with 
£0.466m to be profiled into future years.  
 
In response to a question from the Committee regarding the reported 
£0.195m under budget forecast variance within policy contingency, the Head 
of Finance advised that this was due to a higher forecast than needed for the 
final cost of living adjustment for the staff annual pay award.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the report be noted 
 
 

36 Capital and Investment Strategy 2025-26  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance submitted a report for the Committee to 
consider the draft Capital Strategy and Investment strategy for 2025-26 and 
recommend to the Executive. 
 

Page 6



Budget Planning Committee - 21 January 2025 

  

In introducing the report, the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and 
Regeneration advised the Committee that the Capital Strategy and 
Investment Strategy must be approved by Full Council annually and must 
satisfy the requirements of government legislation and CIPFA guidance. 
 
In relation to the Capital Strategy the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property 
and Regeneration explained that the operation boundary for debt was 
proposed to be reduced from £290m to £200m. This was due to the Council 
changing the approach on how the limit had been calculated to better reflect 
the most likely scenario for external debt. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the draft Capital and Investment Strategy 2025/26 be 

recommended to the Executive. 
 
 

37 Review of Reserves  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance submitted a report to update Budget 
Planning Committee on the Review of Reserves that has taken place in 
preparation of the budget for 2025/26 and the Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy 2025/26 – 2029/30. 
 
In introducing the report, the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and 
Regeneration advised the Committee that an annual review of the council’s 
reserves was undertaken as part of the budget setting process to ensure the 
council maintained a prudent level of reserves over the medium term. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and Regeneration advised that, 
after conducting a risk assessment, it was proposed that the council increase 
its current minimum level of general balances from £6.129m to £7.852m. This 
was due to the level of uncertainty in the discussions of Local Government 
funding reforms. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the outcome of the review of reserves and the forecast over the 

MTFS period be noted 
 

(2) That, having given due consideration, Executive be advised that the 
Budget Planning Committee supports the draft reserve allocations. 

 
 

38 Review of Committee Work Plan  
 
The Committee considered its work plan. It was proposed by Councillor Wood 
and seconded by Councillor Sibley that at the next meeting of the Committee, 
the Committee be provided with an update on the Council’s transformation 
project. 
 

Page 7



Budget Planning Committee - 21 January 2025 

  

Resolved 
 

(1) That, subject to a Committee request for an additional item, update on 
the Council’s transformation project, to the 4 March 2025 meeting, the 
work programme be noted. 

 
 
The meeting ended at 6.48 pm 
 
 
Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 

Page 8



 

Cherwell District Council 

This report is public 
Appendix 6 to the report is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of 

Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972 
 

Finance Monitoring Report 
 

Committee Budget Planning Committee 
 

Date of Committee 4 March 2025 
 

Portfolio Holder presenting 
the report 

Portfolio Holder for Finance, Regeneration and 
Property, Councillor Lesley McLean,  
 

Date Portfolio Holder 
agreed report 
 

7 February 2025 

Report of Assistant Director of Finance (S151 Officer), Michael 
Furness 
 

 

Purpose of report 

To report to the committee the council’s financial position at the end of the financial year 
2024-2025. 

 

1. Recommendations 

 
The Budget Planning Committee resolves: 
 

1.1 To note the contents of this report.    
 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 CDC monitors its financial position on a monthly basis.  This report provides the forecast 

outturn position for the year end based on the position as at 31 December 2024. 
 
 

Implications & Impact Assessments  
 

Implications  
 

Commentary  

Finance  
 

Financial and Resource implications are detailed within sections 
4.1 and 4.2 of this report. The reserves policy requires Executive 
to agree transfers to and from earmarked reserves and general 
balances during the financial year. 
Joanne Kaye, Head of Finance, 7 February 2025 

Legal There are no legal implications arising at this stage.  
The Council has a fiduciary duty to council taxpayers, which 
means it must consider the prudent use of resources, including 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

Cherwell District Council 

control of expenditure, financial prudence in the short and long 
term and the need to act in good faith in relation to compliance 
with statutory duties and exercising statutory powers. The Council 
has a statutory obligation to maintain a balanced budget and the 
monitoring process enables Executive to remain aware of issues 
and understand the actions being taken to maintain a balanced 
budget. 
The report sets out as at December 2024 finance position for the 
Council as part of its fiduciary duty to implement budgetary 
controls and monitoring.  
Denzil Turbervill, Head of Legal, 7 February 2025 

Risk Management  There are no risk implications arising directly from this report. 
Financial resilience risk is managed, and reported quarterly, 
through the Leadership Risk register. 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance Team Leader, 6 February 2025 

 
Impact 
Assessments  
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
  

N
e
u

tr
a

l 
 

N
e
g

a
ti
v
e
 Commentary  

 
 
 
 

Equality Impact   X  There are no equalities implications arising directly 
from this report. 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance Team Leader, 6 
February 2025 

A Are there any 
aspects of the 
proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or 
accessed, that could 
impact on 
inequality? 

 X   

B Will the proposed 
decision have an 
impact upon the 
lives of people with 
protected 
characteristics, 
including employees 
and service users? 

 X   

Climate & 
Environmental 
Impact 

 X  N/A 

ICT & Digital 
Impact 

 X  N/A
 

Data Impact  X  N/A
 

Procurement & 
subsidy 

 X  N/A
 

Council Priorities
 

N/A 

Human Resources  N/A 
 

Page 10



 

Cherwell District Council 

Property N/A 

Consultation & 
Engagement 
 

This report sets out the financial forecast for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2025, therefore no formal consultation or 
engagement is required. 

 
 

Supporting Information 

 
 

3. Background  
 
3.1 The council actively and regularly monitors its financial position to ensure it can 

deliver its corporate priorities and respond effectively to emerging issues. 
 
3.2      This monitoring takes place at least monthly for the finance element and quarterly 

for performance and risk, so the council can identify potential issues at the earliest 
opportunity and put measures in place to mitigate them. 

 
 

4. Details 
 

4.1.1 The council’s overall forecast outturn position for 2024/25 is an overspend of 
£0.043m. The forecast overspend is due to pressures totalling £0.474m within 
service budgets which are being offset by an underspend of (£0.431m) across 
Executive Matters and Policy Contingency.   

The Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) has agreed that a Budget Oversight Group 
will meet with service managers each month where overspends are identified to 
agree in-year mitigation plans and to further strengthen budget management and 
forecasting.   

The projected outturn for the services is summarised below in Table 1 and further 
details providing explanations for variances can be found in Appendix 2.   

 

Table 1: Year End Position 

Service 

Current 
Budget       

December 
Forecast 

to 
Yearend 

December 
Variance 
(Under) / 

Over 

% 
Variance 

to 
current 
budget 

 

November 
Variance 
(Under) / 

Over 

Change 
since 

Previous 
(better) / 

worse 
 

£m £m £m %  £m £m 
 

Finance 3.177 3.177 0.000 0.0%  0.000 0.000   

Legal, Democratic, 
Elections & 
Procurement 2.384 2.516 0.132 5.5%  0.132 0.000   

ICT 1.730 1.730 0.000 0.0%  0.000 0.000   

Property (2.386) (2.250) 0.136 -5.7%  0.136 0.000   

HR & OD 0.815 0.845 0.030 3.7%  0.030 0.000   

Page 11



 

Cherwell District Council 

Customer Focus 2.577 2.457 (0.120) -4.7%  (0.090) (0.030)   

Resources & 
Transformation 8.297 8.475 0.178 2.1%  0.208 (0.030)   

Planning & 
Development 2.398 2.471 0.073 3.0%  0.057 0.016   

Growth & Economy 0.455 0.469 0.014 3.1%  0.014 0.000   

Environmental 6.387 6.591 0.204 3.2%  0.245 (0.041)   

Regulatory 1.164 1.148 (0.016) -1.4%  (0.016) 0.000   

Wellbeing & Housing 2.263 2.163 (0.100) -4.4%  (0.100) 0.000   

Communities 12.667 12.842 0.175 1.4%  0.200 (0.025)   

Subtotal for 
Directorates 20.964 21.317 0.353 1.7%  0.408 -0.055   

Executive Matters 4.293 4.178 (0.115) -2.7%  (0.115) 0.000   

Policy Contingency 1.730 1.535 (0.195) -11.3%  (0.195) 0.000   

Total 26.987 27.030 0.043 0.2%  0.098 (0.055)   

           

FUNDING (26.987) (26.987) 0.000 0.0%  0.000 0.000   

  
         

(Surplus)/Deficit  0.000 0.043 0.043   0.098 (0.055)  

 

Note:  A positive variance is an overspend or a reduction in forecast income and a (negative) is an 
underspend or extra income received. Green represents an underspend and red represents a 
overspend for the current month’s forecast. 

4.1.2 Table 2 below analyses the variances to distinguish between base budget variances 
and variances resulting from the non-delivery of previously approved savings.  The 
non-delivery of savings has a knock-on impact on the Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy as failure to deliver on an ongoing basis adds to future pressures. 

 

Table 2: Analysis of Forecast Variance – December 2024 

Breakdown of current month forecast 

December 
2024 

Forecast 

Base 
Budget 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Savings 
Non-

Delivery 

  £m £m £m 

Resources 0.178 0.128 0.050 

Communities 0.175 (0.249) 0.424 

        

Subtotal Directorates 0.353 (0.121) 0.474 

Executive Matters (0.115) (0.115) 0.000 

Policy Contingency (0.195) (0.195) 0.000 

        

Page 12



 

Cherwell District Council 

Total 0.043 (0.431) 0.474 

    

FUNDING 0.000 0.000 0.000 

       

(Surplus)/Deficit 0.043 (0.431) 0.474 

 

4.1.3 The graph below shows the Budget compared with the forecast to the end of the 

financial year. 

Graph 1: Budget compared with Forecast 

The graph below shows the Budget compared with the forecast to the end of the financial 
year. 
 
 

 
 

 

4.1.4 Table 3 below summarises the major forecast variances for the reporting period.  
Further details can be found in Appendix 2. 

Table 4: Top Major Variances: 

Service 
Current 
Budget       

Variance 
% 

Variance 

Environmental 6.387 0.204 
3.2% 

Property (2.386) 0.136 
5.7% 

Legal, Democratic, Elections & Procurement 2.384 0.132 
5.5% 

Policy Contingency 1.730 (0.195) 
-11.3% 

Total 
6.385 0.472 

 
 
 
Reserves 
 
4.1.7 Allocations to and from reserves are made according to the Reserves Policy. Table 5 

below summarises the movements which have been requested as at 31 December 
2024, more details can be found within Appendix 5.   

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

£
m

Budget V's Outturn

Current Budget Forecast December 2024

Page 13



 

Cherwell District Council 

 
Table 5: Earmarked Reserves: 

Reserves Balance 
1 April 
2024 

Original 
Budgeted use/ 
(contribution) 

Changes 
agreed 
since 

budget 
setting 

Changes 
proposed 
December 

2024 

Balance 
31 

March 
2025 

  £m £m £m £m £m 

General Balance (6.153) 0.000 0.000 0.000 (6.153) 

Earmarked (28.325) (0.776) 0.070 (1.480) (30.511) 

Ringfenced Grant (2.552) 0.898 0.502 0.164 (0.988) 

Subtotal Revenue (37.030) 0.122 0.572 (1.316) (37.652) 

Capital (6.293) 3.250 0.000 0.000 (3.043) 

Total (43.323) 3.372 0.572 (1.316) (40.695) 

 

*According to the Reserves Policy Executive are only required to approve uses of Capital 
Reserves, not contributions.  

Please see appendix 5 for reserve requests. 

 
4.2  Capital  
 
4.2.1 Table 6 below summarises the projected year end forecast for profiled spend in 

2024/25 and Table 7 summarises the financing. There is a projected in-year 
underspend of (£0.438m), with £0.270m that is recommended to be reprofiled into 
future years.  The current month variance is due to underspends on the Town 
Centre House Purchase & Repair (£0.356m), Castle Quay (£0.233m) and 
overspend on the following, Bicester East Community Centre £0.051m, Sunshine 
Centre £0.075m and Development of New Land Bicester Depot £0.036m and minor 
variances totalling £0.011m. Further detail can be found in appendix 1. 

 
Projects that are recommended to have budget reprofiled from 2024/25 are detailed 
in Table 9.  

 
Table 6: Capital Projection 
 

Directorate 
Revised 
Budget 

£m 

Forecast 
Spend 

24/25 £m 

Re-
profiled 
beyond 
2024/25 

£m 

 
Variance 

to 
Budget 

£m 

Prior 
Month 

Variance 
to 

Budget 
£m 

 

Resources & Transformation 8.387 8.195 0.105 (0.087) (0.056)   

Communities 8.760 8.243 0.165 (0.352) (0.352)   

Total 17.147 16.438 0.270 (0.438) (0.407)   

 
For further detail on individual schemes please see Appendix 1.  
 

Page 14



 

Cherwell District Council 

Note: A positive variance is an overspend or a reduction in forecast income and a (negative) is an underspend 
or extra income received.  
Green represents an underspend and red represents a overspend for the outturn position.  

 

 

Table 7: How the Capital Programme is financed  
  

Financing 24/25 
Budget 

£m 

Future 
Years £m 

Total 

Borrowing 12.734 11.516 24.250 

Capital Grants 1.962 9.195 11.157 

Capital Receipts 0.425 5.896 6.321 

S106 Receipts 2.026 3.562 5.588  
17.147 30.169 47.316 

 

 

4.2.2 Table 8 below summarises the projected spend against the full capital programme 
(i.e. forecast spend across all years of the capital programme).  Since November’s 
report there has been a increase in forecast underspend in the programme of 
(£0.031m) predominantly due to the PCI Compliance software that cannot be 
completed until the accompanying systems have been implemented. 

 
Table 8: Total Capital Project Outturn  
  

Directorate 
Budget 

£m 

Total 
Forecast 

2024/25 £m 

 
Variance to 

Budget 
£m 

Prior Month 
Variance to 

Budget 
£m 

 

Resources & 
Transformation 

14.754 14.667 (0.087) (0.056)   

Communities 32.562 32.210 (0.352) (0.352)   

Total 47.316 46.877 (0.438) (0.407)   

 
4.2.3  Table 9 below details the capital schemes which it is recommended budgets are 

reprofiled from 2024/25 to 2025/26 or beyond.  The reprofiling of capital budgets 
can be for several reasons and is common on multi-year projects.  The reasons for 
the recommendations are summarised in section 4.2.4. 

 
Table 9: Requested capital budget reprofiling  

 
Code Top In-Year Variances Budget Total 

£'000 
Reprofile 
to 24/25 

£'000 

% of in year 
Budget 

Variance 

40242 H&S Works to Banbury Shopping Arcade 122.00 105.00 86.07% 

40329 Spiceball Leisure Centre Structural 
Beams 

100.00 100.00 100.00% 

40295 S106 - Ambrosden Indoor Sport Project 65.00 65.00 100.00%   
287.00 270.00 

 

 

Page 15



 

Cherwell District Council 

 
4.2.4 Capital schemes recommended to be reprofiled: 
 

 H&S Works to Banbury Shopping Arcade (40242) 
Works currently in design 

 

 Spiceball Leisure Centre Structural Beams (40329) 
Works to be deferred until December 2025.  

 

 S106 - Ambrosden Indoor Sport Project 
Awaiting new project details. Request to reprofile to 2025/26 
 

5. Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 

 
5.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons 

as set out below.  
 
Option 1: This report summarises the council’s forecast financial position up to the 
end of March 2025, therefore there are no alternative options to consider. 
 

6 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 

  
6.1 It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted. 
 

Decision Information 

 

Key Decision 
 

N/A 
 

Subject to Call in  
 

N/A 

If not, why not subject 
to call in 

N.A 

Ward(s) Affected 
 

All 

Document Information 
 

Appendices 

 

 

Appendix 1 Capital December 2024   

Appendix 2 Detailed Revenue Narrative on Forecast December 2024   

Appendix 3 Virements & Aged Debt December 2024 

Appendix 4 Funding December 2024 

Appendix 5 Use of Reserves & Grant Funding 

Appendix 6 Debt Write Off Report - EXEMPT 

Page 16



 

Cherwell District Council 

Background Papers N/A 

Reference Papers N/A 

Report Author Leanne Lock 

Report Author contact 

details 

Leanne.lock@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  
01295 227098 

 

Page 17

mailto:Leanne.lock@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - CHERWELL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Cost Centre DESCRIPTION BUDGET

2024/25

YTD

ACTUAL

PO 

COMMITMENTS

Forecast RE-

PROFILED

BEYOND

2024/25

RE-

PROFILED

BEYOND

2025/26

Current 

month

Variances

£000

Prior 

month

Variances

£000

Forecast Narrative (Public)

40139 Banbury Health Centre - Refurbishment of roof covering 

and removal of redunant ventilation plant from roof

84 75 5 80 (4) 0 Works complete

40141 Castle Quay Waterfront 0 (616) 0 0 0 0 Retention payment to be paid

40144 Castle Quay 940 1,313 4,397 707 (233) (233) As part of the Castle Quay Development and the regeneration of 

Banbury, the Council is working closely and in partnership with a 

number of  public and private organisations to repurpose parts of 

Castle Quay Shopping Centre to deliver a number of complimentary 

uses enabling the regeneration of Banbury. The underspend results 

from a cash flow and technical accounting adjustment per the 

requirements of the CIPFA code on Local Authority Accounting. These 

costs will instead be recognised as Revenue costs, spread over the 

life of the project

40167 Horsefair, Banbury 20 2 0 20 0 0 Works complete

40219 Community Centre - Works 94 72 1 94 0 0 Design works complete and  contractor appointed. Condition report on 

Museum to be considered and funding sought to recify a number of 

elements.

40224 Fairway Flats Refurbishment 13 3 10 13 0 0 Planning approval has been achieved. Designers are completing the 

detail design and specification for the solar panels and roof works. We 

will then need to tender these works as they are over £0.100m. We 

therefore anticipate works commencing in the new year and the works 

to continue through to the new financial year, partly due to the need to 

avoid the worst of the winter / spring weather, whilst carrying out 

works on a residential building roof space. We have adjusted the 

spend profile for these works.

40227 Banbury Museum - Decarbonisation Works 0 (20) 0 0 0 0 Retention payment to be paid

40232 Kidlington Leisure Centre - Decarbonisation Works 0 0 4 4 4 4 Small overspend for retention payment (offset elsewhere)

40239 Bicester East Community Centre 685 715 101 736 51 62 Overspend due to additional works on resolving public sewers 

diversion requirement of Thames Water and inaccurate information 

provided by them in the design stages. These works delayed works on 

site thus incurring further costs from the main contract works.

40241 Thorpe Place Roof Works 0 (0) (0) 0 0 0 Carrying out drone survey of roof to identify condition ready for 

scoping and design. 

P
age 19



40242 H&S Works to Banbury Shopping Arcade 122 14 3 17 105 0 0 Works currently in design

40254 Thorpe Lane Depot - Renewal of Electrical Incoming Main 169 0 0 169 0 0 Works are currently designed  pending tender of the Electrical supply 

infrastructure.  Works to be coordinated with the District Network 

Operator  to install the new sub station, who are engaged. Waiting for 

dates from the District Network Operator. 

40255 Installation of Photovoltaic at CDC Property 79 7 0 79 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. Planned delivery Q4 the financial year 

2024/25. 

40263 Kidlington Leisure New Electrical Main 20 0 0 20 0 0 Works are currently designed  pending tender of the Electrical supply 

infrastructure.  Works to be coordinated with the District Network 

Operator (DNO) to install the new sub station, who are engaged. 

Waiting for dates from the DNO. Planned delivery expected to be Q4 

2024/25. There are 3 leases and sub leases to be amended before 

this can proceed.

40264 Sunshine Centre 182 226 32 257 75 75 Pressure occurred as result of previously unknown but essential works 

identified during the course of the works. 

40279 Spiceball Sports Centre - Solar PV Car Ports 173 0 0 173 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. Planned delivery Q3/Q4 of the financial year 

2024/25

40280 Kidlington Sports Centre - Solar PV Car Ports 137 0 0 137 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. Work cannot start until electrical mains 

installed (dependant on DNO). Planned delivery Q4 2024/25

40281 North Oxfordshire Academy - Solar Panels 18 0 0 18 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. 

40282 Community Centre Solar Panels 108 0 0 108 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. Planned delivery in Q3/Q4 of 24/25. Part of 

EPC work, community centres will need to agree.

40283 Thorpe Lane - Solar Panels 34 0 0 34 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. 

40284 Thorpe Lane - Heater Replacement (Gas to Electric) 24 0 0 24 0 0 Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise 

potential PV to the site. Planned delivery is Q4 2024/25. 

P
age 20



40278 Development of New Land Bicester Depot 85 89 32 121 36 36 The designers are appointed and Consultation on proposed layouts 

for the new depot are taking place with user groups. A Planning 

application is  being prepared, however an ecological survey and 

protected species survey will be required to be submitted with this 

application and we have been unable to obtain these services, due to 

high demand for Ecologists, until October. This has resulted in a delay 

of 4 months to our original programme and consequent re-profiling of 

the capital budget as the anticipated completion is impacted by the 

delay to Planning approval. 

40317 Cope Road, Banbury 29 3 31 34 5 0 Design work completed pending tendering. Contractor now appointed 

and starts in 4 weeks on site.

40316 CDC Office Relocation to Castle Quay 5,146 141 79 5,146 (0) 0 On target to be delivered in 24/25

40327 Thorpe Place Roofing Works 109 2 5 109 0 0 Carrying out drone survey of roof to identify condition ready for 

scoping and design. 

8,271 2,025 4,699 8,099 105 0 (67) (56)

40256 Processing Card Payments & Direct Debits 20 0 0 0 (20) 0 PCI Compliance will be completed once accompanying systems are 

implemented.

Finance 20 0 0 0 0 0 (20) 0

40334 Robotic Process Automation Pilot 96 0 96 96 0 0 On target to be delivered in 24/25

96 0 96 96 0 0 0 0

8,387 2,025 4,795 8,195 105 0 (87) (56)
40062 East West Railways 30 0 3 30 0 0 The capital fund has been set up to enable the Council’s costs to be 

recharged when responding to enquiries and regulatory applications, 

involving for example environmental and land drainage matters, made 

in connection with the East West Railways project. This is in 

partnership with England’s Economic Heartland. 

The Digital Enhancement Project is a small element of CDC’s 

commitment, involving the transfer of funds in four stages to reflect 

Network Rail’s delivery of the digital infrastructure. Final invoice 

expected to be received by the end of Q3 once work is completed

40286 Transforming Market Square Bicester 180 (3) 0 180 0 0 Market Square study to be completed in 2024/25, An engagement 

event for the business sector was held in July and prompted 

clarification of the project's objectives. Further engagement events to 

gather input from both the business sector and local community 

groups are scheduled for November. Final drawings will be available 

by February 2025 for approval. Procurement of contractor and works 

to begin in 25/26, works aim to be completed 26/27. 

40287 UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UK SPF) Year Three 

Investment Plan Programme

162 17 3 162 0 0 UKSPF capital grant will be fully spent in 2024/25 on the following;

£90k Improvements to town centres & high streets

£70k Community & neighbourhood infrastructure

£2K improvements to local green spaces

£50K contribution to floodlights at Whitelands Sport ground which is 

shown in cost centre Whiteland Farm Sports ground.

40288 UKSPF Rural Fund 408 319 55 408 (0) (0) UKSPF Rural Fund (REPF capital grant) will be fully spent in 2024/25:

£20k  - creation and improvements to local rural green spaces

£67k – active travel enhancements to the local rural area

£321k – capital grants for micro and small enterprises in rural areas.

780 333 62 780 0 0 0 0

40028 Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,073 668 400 1,073 0 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

Property

Finance

ICT 

Resources & Transformation

Growth & Economy

P
age 21



40187 On Street Recycling Bins 18 0 0 18 0 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40216 Street Scene Furniture and Fencing project 15 0 0 15 0 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40222 Burnehyll- Bicester Country Park 10 12 10 10 0 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40259 Market Equipment Replacement 15 5 0 15 0 0 Anticipating full spend in quarter 2 of 2024/25.

40291 New Commercial Waste IT System 25 18 0 25 0 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40331 Additional Commercial Waste Containers 29 0 0 33 4 4 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

Environmental Services 1,185 703 410 1,189 0 0 4 4

40083 Disabled Facilities Grants 1,200 779 28 1,200 0 0 Full spend anticipated

40084 Discretionary Grants Domestic Properties 150 76 2 150 0 0 Full spend anticipated

40160 Housing Services - capital 168 8 0 168 0 0 Forecasting in line with budget

40262 Town Centre House Purchase and Repair 2,880 1,751 41 2,524 (356) (356) Some delays resulting in later completion but still due to complete in 

2024/25

40294 S106 - Ambrosden Community Facility Project 20 0 0 20 0 0 Parish Council has a variety of projects they are looking to increase 

capacity at the village hall.

40295 S106 - Ambrosden Indoor Sport Project 65 0 0 0 65 0 0 Awaiting new project details. Request to reprofile to 2025-26

40297 S106 - Ardley & Fewcott Play Area Project 15 0 0 15 0 0 Bench and play tunnel project approved, all paperwork completed and 

signed off, project delivery underway.

40298 S106 - Ardley & Fewcott Village Hall Project 3 0 0 3 0 0 Project details for replacement windows received. S106 spend 

approved.

40301 S106 - Graven Hill Outdoor Sport Project 52 0 0 52 0 0 Expected to commence works on the Graven Hill Project during 

2024/25. Intention to secure services of project consultants to support 

on initial phases of the programme through to delivery. Project 

Consultants now procured, with initial scoping discussions to take 

place

40303 S106 - Hanwell Fields Community Centre Projects 180 4 10 180 0 0 S106 funding is allocated to Hanwell Fields Community Centre to 

enhance the existing facility with the intention of increasing 

opportunities for residents to take part in activities. This project is 

centred around the options for putting in a mezzanine floor in the 

current main hall area to give a split level facility. Currently working 

with Property Team around whether this is feasible and affordable with 

some cost estimates. Inital design proposals provided (to be 

discussed as part of design team meetings) Outline costs provided, 

however review and update of designs will result in amended costs. 

Preferred option being explored

40308 S106 - Milton Road Community Facility and Sports Pitch 

Project

100 0 0 100 0 0 CDC hold the £471k of s106 for the Parish Council who are seeking 

additional grant funding from other sources to increase what they are 

aiming to deliver on

40310 S106 - Spiceball Leisure Centre Improvements 14 0 0 14 0 0 Options are being considered

40312 S106 - Whitelands Farm Sports Ground (Pedestrian 

crossing  and various works)

132 98 0 132 0 0 Awaiting confirmation of how the pedestrian crossing is to be 

delivered. Project to be delivered upon in 2024/25

40313 S106 - Woodgreen Leisure Centre Improvements 141 8 8 141 0 0 Improvements planned to the Swimming Pool Changing Rooms. 

Expected to complete on works during February/March 2025. 

Quotations exepcted by 11th December

40314 S106 - Deddington Parish Council Projects 67 0 0 67 0 0 To be spent on the Windmill Community Centre car park lighting 

project - project spend approved and delivery underway.

40315 S106 - Longford Park Sport Pitches 10 0 0 10 0 0 Maintenance cost for the pitches and pavilion

P
age 22



40319 Local Authority Housing Fund R2 335 279 0 335 0 0 Grant agreements have been concluded with two registered providers 

of social housing, Sanctuary Housing and South Oxfordshire Housing 

Association (SOHA) to bring homes forward for clients within 

resettlement scheme. Second and final payment of £100k to 

Sanctuary Housing now paid. £56k remaining for floor coverings which 

Sanctuary will also deliver, some funds may remain at then of the 

project.

40324 Development of Activity Play Zones 162 0 0 162 0 0 Application process for Football Foundation Funding has been 

completed and working with Football Foundation and Town Council on 

project delivery. Grant application has been accepted by the Football 

Foundation. Subject to Planning Permission works likely to commence 

early to mid 2025. Projects identified in Princess Diana Park and 

Chandos Close. Planning permission has now been submitted

40325 Graven Hill Community and Infrastructure Projects 80 0 0 80 0 0 Expected to commence works on the Graven Hill Project during 

2024/25. Intention to secure services of project consultants to support 

on initial phases of the programme through to delivery. Project 

Consultants now procured, with initial scoping discussions

40328 S106 – Windmill Community and Sports Centre Tennis 

Courts

51 0 42 51 0 0 Mini tennis court project underway and full spend anticipated in 

2024/25

40329 Spiceball Leisure Centre Structural Beams 100 0 0 0 100 0 0 Works to be deferred until December 2025

40330 Replacement of the Sports Hall Roof at Bicester Leisure 

Centre

45 0 20 45 0 0 After receiving the condition survey report into the roof that gave 

options to extend the lifespan by 5 to 10 years it was agreed to take 

this option which fell within the budget allocation, rather than  a new 

complete roof which would require a request for additional funding. - 

works to commence week beginning 13th Jan

40332 S106 - grant funded Affordable Accommodation 560 0 0 560 0 0 To provide grant funding to South Oxfordshire Housing Association 

(SOHA) (a registered provider of social housing), providing 40% 

contribution towards the cost of securing 4 homes in the Cherwell 

District to be converted to social housing. Initially, these homes will 

provide temporary accommodation for homeless households in 

Cherwell to whom CDC have a legal duty to temporarily 

accommodate. Longer term they will revert to affordable rented 

housing let through CDC's housing register should they no longer be 

required to be used as temporary accommodation. The size/type of 

the homes agreed in principle for SOHA to purchase are 3 x 2-

bedroom houses and 1 x 3-bedroom house. Grant agreement to be 

put in place with SOHA Autumn 2024. Payment of grant to be made to 

SOHA Winter/Spring 2024/25

Wellbeing & Housing 6,530 3,001 152 6,009 165 0 (356) (356)

40245 Enable Agile Working 15 0 0 15 0 0 This funding is still intended to be used to purchase the IT hardware 

required to enable the teams in Regulatory Services to use the case 

management system whilst ‘on-site’ carrying out inspection work, etc. 

The release of the app that will support mobile working continues to 

be delayed but is progressing. we expect the app to be available early 

2025

40333 CCTV Thames Valley Project 250 0 0 250 0 0 Upgrade the public open space CCTV network and cameras to meet 

the necessary threshold to be included in the OPCC Thames Valley 

CCTV project

Regulatory Services 265 0 0 265 0 0 0 0

8,760 4,037 624 8,243 165 0 (352) (352)

17,147 6,063 5,419 16,438 270 0 (438) (407)Capital 

Communities

P
age 23



CHERWELL TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENDITURE 

CODE DESCRIPTION
Total 24/25 

Project Budget
Forecast

RE-PROFILED

BEYOND

2024/25

24/25 Variance

Future 

Years 

Budget

Project Total 

Budget
Project Total forecast

Project Total 

Variance

Narrative

40139
Banbury Health Centre - Refurbishment of 

Ventilation, Heating & Cooling Systems
84 80 0 (4) 0 84 80 (4) Works complete

40144 Castle Quay 940 707 0 (233) 1,793 2,733 2,500 (233)

As part of the Castle Quay Development and the regeneration of Banbury, the 

Council is working closely and in partnership with a number of  public and private 

organisations to repurpose parts of Castle Quay Shopping Centre to deliver a 

number of complimentary uses enabling the regeneration of Banbury. The 

underspend results from a cash flow and technical accounting adjustment per the 

requirements of the CIPFA code on Local Authority Accounting. These costs will 

instead be recognised as Revenue costs, spread over the life of the project

40167 Horsefair, Banbury 20 20 0 0 0 20 20 0 Works complete

40219 Community Centre - Works 94 94 0 0 0 94 94 0
Design works complete and  contractor appointed. Condition report on Museum to 

be considered and funding sought to recify a number of elements.

40224 Fairway Flats Refurbishment 13 13 0 0 325 338 338 0

Planning approval has been achieved. Designers are completing the detail design 

and specification for the solar panels and roof works. We will then need to tender 

these works as they are over £0.100m. We therefore anticipate works commencing 

in the new year and the works to continue through to the new financial year, partly 

due to the need to avoid the worst of the winter / spring weather, whilst carrying out 

works on a residential building roof space. We have adjusted the spend profile for 

these works.

40232 Kidlington Leisure Centre - 

Decarbonisation Works
0 4 0 4 0 0 4 4 Small overspend for retention payment (offset elsewhere)

40239

Bicester East Community Centre 685 736 0 51 0 685 736 51

Overspend due to additional works on resolving public sewers diversion 

requirement of Thames Water and inaccurate information provided by them in the 

design stages. These works delayed works on site thus incurring further costs from 

the main contract works.

40242
H&S Works to Banbury Shopping Arcade 122 17 105 0 0 122 122 0 Works currently in design

40254
Thorpe Lane Depot - Renewal of Electrical 

Incoming Main
169 169 0 0 0 169 169 0

Works are currently designed  pending tender of the Electrical supply 

infrastructure.  Works to be coordinated with the District Network Operator  to install 

the new sub station, who are engaged. Waiting for dates from the District Network 

Operator. 

40255 Installation of Photovoltaic at CDC Property 79 79 0 0 0 79 79 0
Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. Planned delivery Q4 the financial year 2024/25. 

40263 Kidlington Leisure New Electrical Main 20 20 0 0 0 20 20 0

Works are currently designed  pending tender of the Electrical supply 

infrastructure.  Works to be coordinated with the District Network Operator (DNO) 

to install the new sub station, who are engaged. Waiting for dates from the DNO. 

Planned delivery expected to be Q4 2024/25. There are 3 leases and sub leases to 

be amended before this can proceed.

40264 Sunshine Centre 182 257 0 75 0 182 257 75
Pressure occurred as result of previously unknown but essential works identified 

during the course of the works. 

40279
Spiceball Sports Centre - Solar PV Car 

Ports
173 173 0 0 0 173 173 0

Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. Planned delivery Q3/Q4 of the financial year 2024/25

40280
Kidlington Sports Centre - Solar PV Car 

Ports
137 137 0 0 0 137 137 0

Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. Work cannot start until electrical mains installed (dependant on DNO). 

Planned delivery Q4 2024/25

P
age 24



40281 North Oxfordshire Academy - Solar Panels 18 18 0 0 0 18 18 0
Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. 

40282 Community Centre Solar Panels 108 108 0 0 0 108 108 0

Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. Planned delivery in Q3/Q4 of 24/25. Part of EPC work, community centres 

will need to agree.

40283 Thorpe Lane - Solar Panels 34 34 0 0 0 34 34 0
Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. 

40284
Thorpe Lane - Heater Replacement (Gas 

to Electric)
24 24 0 0 0 24 24 0

Preparing scope so that feasibilities can be carried out to maximise potential PV to 

the site. Planned delivery is Q4 2024/25. 

40278 Development of New Land Bicester Depot 85 121 0 36 3,874 3,959 3,995 36

The designers are appointed and Consultation on proposed layouts for the new 

depot are taking place with user groups. A Planning application is  being prepared, 

however an ecological survey and protected species survey will be required to be 

submitted with this application and we have been unable to obtain these services, 

due to high demand for Ecologists, until October. This has resulted in a delay of 4 

months to our original programme and consequent re-profiling of the capital budget 

as the anticipated completion is impacted by the delay to Planning approval. 

40316 CDC Office Relocation to Castle Quay 5,146 5,146 0 (0) 0 5,146 5,146 (0) On target to be delivered in 24/25

40317 Cope Road, Banbury 29 34 0 5 0 29 34 5
Design work completed pending tendering. Contractor now appointed and starts in 

4 weeks on site.

40327 Thorpe Place Roofing Works 109 109 0 0 0 109 109 0 Carrying out drone survey of roof to identify condition ready for scoping and design. 

8,271 8,099 105 (67) 5,992 14,263 14,196 (67)

40256 Processing Card Payments & Direct Debits 20 0 0 (20) 0 20 0 (20) PCI Compliance will be completed once accompanying systems are implemented.

20 0 0 (20) 0 20 0 (20)

40237 Council Website & Digital Service 0 0 0 0 122 122 122 0 Work underway to select a product to form basis of Unified CRM Platform.

40334 Robotic Process Automation Pilot 96 96 0 0 36 132 132 0

40326
Digital Futures Programme (Business 

Cases Required)
0 0 0 0 217 217 217 0 New digital futures budget

96 96 0 0 375 471 471 0

8,387 8,195 105 (87) 6,367 14,754 14,667 (87)

40062 East West Railways 30 30 0 0 4,248 4,278 4,278 0

The capital fund has been set up to enable the Council’s costs to be recharged 

when responding to enquiries and regulatory applications, involving for example 

environmental and land drainage matters, made in connection with the East West 

Railways project. This is in partnership with England’s Economic Heartland. 

The Digital Enhancement Project is a small element of CDC’s commitment, 

involving the transfer of funds in four stages to reflect Network Rail’s delivery of the 

digital infrastructure. Final invoice expected to be received by the end of Q3 once 

work is completed

40286 Transforming Market Square Bicester 180 180 0 0 4,055 4,235 4,235 0

Market Square study to be completed in 2024/25, An engagement event for the 

business sector was held in July and prompted clarification of the project's 

objectives. Further engagement events to gather input from both the business 

sector and local community groups are scheduled for November. Final drawings 

will be available by February 2025 for approval. Procurement of contractor and 

works to begin in 25/26, works aim to be completed 26/27. 

40287
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UK SPF) Year 

Two Investment Plan Programme
162 162 0 0 0 162 162 0

UKSPF capital grant will be fully spent in 2024/25 on the following;

£90k Improvements to town centres & high streets

£70k Community & neighbourhood infrastructure

£2K improvements to local green spaces

£50K contribution to floodlights at Whitelands Sport ground which is shown in cost 

centre Whiteland Farm Sports ground.

40288 UKSPF Rural Fund 408 408 0 (0) 0 408 408 (0)

UKSPF Rural Fund (REPF capital grant) will be fully spent in 2024/25:

£20k  - creation and improvements to local rural green spaces

£67k – active travel enhancements to the local rural area

£321k – capital grants for micro and small enterprises in rural areas.

780 780 0 0 8,303 9,083 9,083 0

40028 Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,073 1,073 0 0 5,331 6,404 6,404 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40187 On Street Recycling Bins 18 18 0 0 0 18 18 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

Finance Total

Growth & Economy

Property

ICT

Resources & Transformation

P
age 25



40216 Street Scene Furniture and Fencing project 15 15 0 0 0 15 15 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40218 Depot Fuel System Renewal 0 0 0 0 35 35 35 0
Budget reprofiled in to 2025/26.

40222 Burnehyll- Bicester Country Park 10 10 0 0 114 124 124 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40258
Kidlington Public Convenience 

Refurbishment
0 0 0 0 90 90 90 0

Budget reprofiled in to 2025/26.

40259 Market Equipment Replacement 15 15 0 0 0 15 15 0 Anticipating full spend in quarter 2 of 2024/25.

40291 New Commercial Waste IT System 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40320 Net Zero 0 0 0 0 625 625 625 0

40321 Landscape Software Upgrade 0 0 0 0 25 25 25 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40322 Street Cleansing IT System 0 0 0 0 25 25 25 0 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

40331 Additional Commercial Waste Containers
29 33 0 4 25 54 58 4 Anticipating full spend in 2024/25.

1,185 1,189 0 4 6,270 7,455 7,459 4

40019 Bicester Leisure Centre Extension 0 0 0 0 79 79 79 0

The current budget is for preparatory works to identify the business case for 

operation ahead of S106 monies coming in from developments. Budget requires 

reprofiling as scheme is outlined for build in 2027-28

40083 Disabled Facilities Grants 1,200 1,200 0 0 5,140 6,340 6,340 0
Full spend anticipated

40084 Discretionary Grants Domestic Properties 150 150 0 0 450 600 600 0
Full spend anticipated

40160 Housing Services - capital 168 168 0 0 0 168 168 0
Forecasting in line with budget

40251 Longford Park Art 0 0 0 0 45 45 45 0
Artist will complete their commissions once the parkland has been handed over. 

This is dependent on the development reaching the required standard.

40262 Town Centre House Purchase and Repair 2,880 2,524 0 (356) 0 2,880 2,524 (356) Some delays resulting in later completion but still due to complete in 2024/25

40294
S106 - Ambrosden Community Facility 

Project
20 20 0 0 0 20 20 0

Parish Council has a variety of projects they are looking to increase capacity at the 

village hall.

40295 S106 - Ambrosden Indoor Sport Project 65 0 65 0 0 65 65 0 Awaiting new project details. Request to reprofile to 2025-26

40296 S106 - Ambrosden Outdoor Sports 0 0 0 0 130 130 130 0
Site to be confirmed before project can move forward therefore reprofiled beyond 

2024/25

40297 S106 - Ardley & Fewcott Play Area Project 15 15 0 0 0 15 15 0
Bench and play tunnel project approved, all paperwork completed and signed off, 

project delivery underway.

40298
S106 - Ardley & Fewcott Village Hall 

Project
3 3 0 0 0 3 3 0 Project details for replacement windows received. S106 spend approved.

40300 S106 - Bicester Leisure Centre Extension 0 0 0 0 1,154 1,154 1,154 0

Initial stages of feasibility have been completed with high level costings received to 

deliver the project. Further stages required including detailed business case. Re-

profiled beyond 2024-25 to when S106 funding is received and fully available.

40301 S106 - Graven Hill Outdoor Sport Project 52 52 0 0 0 52 52 0

Expected to commence works on the Graven Hill Project during 2024/25. Intention 

to secure services of project consultants to support on initial phases of the 

programme through to delivery. Project Consultants now procured, with initial 

scoping discussions to take place

40303
S106 - Hanwell Fields Community Centre 

Projects
180 180 0 0 0 180 180 0

S106 funding is allocated to Hanwell Fields Community Centre to enhance the 

existing facility with the intention of increasing opportunities for residents to take 

part in activities. This project is centred around the options for putting in a 

mezzanine floor in the current main hall area to give a split level facility. Currently 

working with Property Team around whether this is feasible and affordable with 

some cost estimates. Inital design proposals provided (to be discussed as part of 

design team meetings) Outline costs provided, however review and update of 

designs will result in amended costs. Preferred option being explored

40304
S106 - Hook Norton Sport And Social Club 

Project
0 0 0 0 80 80 80 0

The scale and scope of the project is yet to be confirmed and therefore reprofiled to 

2025/26

40305

S106 - Horley Cricket Club Pavilion Project

0 0 0 0 110 110 110 0

The project is for improvements and enhancements to the Horley Cricket Club 

Pavilion. There have been contractors on site to price up the works, however 

nothing will happen until post September because of cricket season. 

40307 S106 - Kidlington & Gosford Leisure Centre 0 0 0 0 20 20 20 0 No detailed projects as yet therefore S106 funding to be reprofiled beyond 2024-25

40308
S106 - Milton Road Community Facility and 

Sports Pitch Project
100 100 0 0 371 471 471 0

CDC hold the £471k of s106 for the Parish Council who are seeking additional 

grant funding from other sources to increase what they are aiming to deliver on

40310
S106 - Spiceball Leisure Centre 

Improvements
14 14 0 0 0 14 14 0 Options are being considered

Environmental

P
age 26



40311 S106 - The Hill Improvements Project 0 0 0 0 50 50 50 0
Awaiting details of projects funded by  S106 funding already received, therefore 

budget request to reprofile beyond 2024-25

40312
S106 - Whitelands Farm Sports Ground 

(Pedestrian crossing  and various works)
132 132 0 0 0 132 132 0

Awaiting confirmation of how the pedestrian crossing is to be delivered. Project to 

be delivered upon in 2024/25

40313
S106 - Woodgreen Leisure Centre 

Improvements
141 141 0 0 0 141 141 0

Improvements planned to the Swimming Pool Changing Rooms. Expected to 

complete on works during February/March 2025. Quotations exepcted by 11th 

December

40314 S106 - Deddington Parish Council Projects 67 67 0 0 0 67 67 0
To be spent on the Windmill Community Centre car park lighting project - project 

spend approved and delivery underway.

40315 S106 - Longford Park Sport Pitches 10 10 0 0 0 10 10 0 Maintenance cost for the pitches and pavilion

40319

Local Authority Housing Fund R2

335 335 0 0 0 335 335 0

Grant agreements have been concluded with two registered providers of social 

housing, Sanctuary Housing and South Oxfordshire Housing Association (SOHA) 

to bring homes forward for clients within resettlement scheme. Second and final 

payment of £100k to Sanctuary Housing due in the next week. £56k remaining for 

floor coverings which Sanctuary will also deliver, some funds may remain at then of 

the project.

40323

NOA 3G Pitch Development

0 0 0 0 1,600 1,600 1,600 0

Due to proposed alternative location of 3G Pitch, the progression to delivery will be 

dependent on a number of factors. Whilst unlikely there will be any spend in 

2024/25 there may be some set up costs should delivery stage be achieved before 

year end

40324

Development of Activity Play Zones

162 162 0 0 0 162 162 0

Application process for Football Foundation Funding has been completed and 

working with Football Foundation and Town Council on project delivery. Grant 

application has been accepted by the Football Foundation. Subject to Planning 

Permission works likely to commence early to mid 2025. Projects identified in 

Princess Diana Park and Chandos Close. Planning permission has now been 

submitted

40325

Graven Hill Community and Infrastructure 

Projects
80 80 0 0 0 80 80 0

Expected to commence works on the Graven Hill Project during 2024/25. Intention 

to secure services of project consultants to support on initial phases of the 

programme through to delivery. Project Consultants now procured, with initial 

scoping discussions

40328
S106 – Windmill Community and Sports 

Centre Tennis Courts
51 51 0 0 0 51 51 0 Mini tennis court project underway and full spend anticipated in 2024/25

40329
Spiceball Leisure Centre Structural Beams

100 0 100 0 0 100 100 0 Works to be deferred until December 2025

40330

Replacement of the Sports Hall Roof at 

Bicester Leisure Centre

45 45 0 0 0 45 45 0

After receiving the condition survey report into the roof that gave options to extend 

the lifespan by 5 to 10 years it was agreed to take this option which fell within the 

budget allocation, rather than  a new complete roof which would require a request 

for additional funding. Tender returns required for 30th October. Works now 

anticipated November/December 2024. Contract awarded for the works - 

completion expected Jan 25

40332

S106 - grant funded Affordable 

Accommodation

560 560 0 0 0 560 560 0

To provide grant funding to South Oxfordshire Housing Association (SOHA) (a 

registered provider of social housing), providing 40% contribution towards the cost 

of securing 4 homes in the Cherwell District to be converted to social housing. 

Initially, these homes will provide temporary accommodation for homeless 

households in Cherwell to whom CDC have a legal duty to temporarily 

accommodate. Longer term they will revert to affordable rented housing let through 

CDC's housing register should they no longer be required to be used as temporary 

accommodation. The size/type of the homes agreed in principle for SOHA to 

purchase are 3 x 2-bedroom houses and 1 x 3-bedroom house. Grant agreement 

to be put in place with SOHA Autumn 2024. Payment of grant to be made to SOHA 

Winter/Spring 2024/25

6,530 6,009 165 (356) 9,229 15,759 15,403 (356)

40245 Enable Agile Working 15 15 0 0 0 15 15 0

This funding is still intended to be used to purchase the IT hardware required to 

enable the teams in Regulatory Services to use the case management system 

whilst ‘on-site’ carrying out inspection work, etc. The release of the app that will 

support mobile working continues to be delayed but is progressing. we expect the 

app to be available early 2025

40333 CCTV Thames Valley Project 250 250 0 0 0 250 250 0
Upgrade the public open space CCTV network and cameras to meet the necessary 

threshold to be included in the OPCC Thames Valley CCTV project

265 265 0 0 0 265 265 0

8,760 8,243 165 (352) 23,802 32,562 32,210 (352)

17,147 16,438 270 (438) 30,169 47,316 46,877 (438)

Wellbeing & Housing

Capital Total

Communities

Regulatory Services

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - Report Details – Additional Revenue narrative  
 

Resources & Transformation 
 
Revenue: 
 
Resources & Transformation are forecasting £0.178m overspend against a budget 
of £8.297m (2.1%). 
The service is keeping spend tightly under control, with constant action being taken to 
mitigate against increased costs.  
 

 
 
 

Finance 
 
Variation  
£0.000m 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000m 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Finance is forecasting in line with budget. 
 

  

Variance
June 2024 -

£m

Variance
August 2024

- £m

Variance
September

2024

Variance
October

2024

Variance
November

2024

Variance
December

2024

Finance 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Legal, Democratic, Elections &
Procurement

0.129 0.079 0.109 0.119 0.132 0.132

ICT 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Property 0.100 0.075 0.075 0.084 0.136 0.136

HR & OD 0.050 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030

Customer Focus (0.080) (0.120) (0.090) (0.090) (0.090) (0.120)

(0.150)

(0.100)

(0.050)

0.000

0.050

0.100

0.150

£
m

Forecast Variance - Resources & Transformation

Page 29



Legal, Democratic, 
Elections & 
Procurement 
 
 
Variation  
£0.132m 
Overspend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000m 
 

 
 
 
 
 
There is a continued need to provide legal advice to 
officers and members in relation to litigation, information 
governance, planning and general case load. Most of the 
work in these areas is funded through engaging locum 
lawyers and other professional staff. The service is also 
covering maternity leave and case load accumulated due 
to key staff being on leave.  
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for securing 
appropriate staff and suitable legal advice, investigating 
and reporting on anything the Council does that has the 
potential to be an illegal action or investigating and 
reporting on any action that might count as 
maladministration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ICT 
 
Variation 
£0.000m overspend 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000m 
 
 

 
 

IT are forecasting to be within budget with small 
overspends in supplies and services being offset by an 
underspend in salaries to be adjusted now that budgets are 
realigned for Digital and Innovation. 

Property 
 
Variation 
£0.136m  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The £0.136m overspend is due to the following: - 
£0.100m overspend at CQ remains unchanged and is due 

to void costs of holding vacant units and unscheduled 

necessary expenditure for car park lighting and other 

maintenance costs. Work to review contracts and market 

void units is continuing with the impact of reducing the 

overspend as the year progresses. There have been some 

Page 30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000m 
 
 
 
 

positive movements achieved through the reduction of 

utility expenditure forecasts. 

(£0.008m) underspend in Property because of an 

underspend due to vacancies that were not filled until 

November, admin charges generating an income, 

improved income from rent reviews and lease renewals 

and reduced repair and maintenance costs. This 

underspend has been largely offset by an overspend in 

repair and maintenance across the service 

£0.044m overspend in car parks (due to various small 
overspends across the service, including electricity and 
insurance expenses) 
 
 

Customer Focus 
 
Variation  
(£0.120m) underspend 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.030m) 
 
 
 

 
 
Customer Focus is forecasting an underspend of 
(£0.120m) at year end.  The bulk of this underspend is from 
vacancies being held. 
 
 
 
Improvement in land charges income projection and 
recruitment to vacant posts postponed to Q4 24/25. 

HR & OD  
 
Variations £0.030m 
Overspend 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.000m) 
 

 
 
Implementation of the managed payroll system has proven 
more economical and offered more resilience than the in-
house service, however there is an anticipated overspend 
of £0.050m as a result of the implementation which the 
service is looking to mitigate with efficiencies within the HR 
budget. The current forecast is £0.030m overspend. 

 

Page 31



Capital: 
 

 
 

Service 
Budget 

£m 

Forecast 
Spend 
24/25 
£m 

Re-
profiled 
beyond 
2024/25 

£m 

 
Variance 

to 
Budget 

£m 

Prior 
Month 

Variance 
to Budget 

£m 

Finance 0.020 0.000 0.000 (0.020) 0.000 

Legal, Democratic, Elections & Procurement 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

ICT 0.096 0.096 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Property 8.271 8.099 0.105 (0.067) (0.056) 

Total 8.387 8.195 0.105 (0.087) (0.056) 

 
For detailed explanation and variances please see appendix 1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.000

1.000

2.000

3.000

4.000

5.000

6.000

7.000

8.000

9.000

Finance Legal, Democratic,
Elections &

Procurement

ICT Property

£
m

Resources & Transformation - Capital

Budget
£m

Forecast Spend 24/25 £m Re-profiled beyond 2024/25
£m

Page 32



 
Communities 
 
Revenue: 
 
Communities are forecasting a £0.175m overspend against a budget of £12.842m, 
(1.4%).  
 
With a number of pressures emerging in the forecast to year end, the directorate 
leadership team has carried out a review of pressures and mitigations to contain 
across the Communities directorate in so far as possible. This has substantially 
reduced the forecast pressures to year end and will be closely monitored month 
by month to track progress and for any further changes. 
 

 
 

Planning & 
Development 
 
Variation  
£0.073m 
overspend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Planning and Development is forecasting an 
overspend of £0.073m.  
Development management has a forecast 
overspend of £0.037m.  This includes a lower 
forecast for planning application fees for the year 
but higher expected income from Planning 
Performance Agreements (PPAs). 
Planning Policy, Conservation & Design is 
essentially forecasting to budget (an underspend of 
 (£0.003m)). 
Building Control is forecasting an overspend of 
£0.037m due mainly to lower income expectations 
and necessary agency costs. 

Variance
June 2024

- £m

Variance
August

2024 - £m

Variance
September

2024

Variance
October

2024

Variance
November

2024

Variance
December

2024

Planning & Development 0.100 0.151 0.080 0.114 0.057 0.073

Growth & Economy 0.000 0.000 0.013 0.013 0.014 0.014

Environmental 0.000 0.143 0.143 0.209 0.245 0.204

Regulatory 0.000 0.000 0.000 -0.016 (0.016) (0.016)

Wellbeing & Community 0.000 (0.035) (0.100) -0.100 (0.100) (0.100)

(0.150)
(0.100)
(0.050)

0.000
0.050
0.100
0.150
0.200
0.250
0.300

£
m

Forecast Variance - Communities

Page 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.016m 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The main changes since last month are relating to 
consultancy costs in Planning Policy £0.020m and 
other small variances.  Overall, the net change is 
£0.016m. 
There is active monitoring of costs relative to 
income to continue to put downward pressure on 
the forecast overspend.   
  

Growth & Economy 
 
Variation 
£0.014m overspend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000m 
 

 
 
Growth and Economy are predicting a £0.014m 
overspend.  Delivery continues in relation to the 
Shared Prosperity Funding commitments, 
alongside the Bicester Garden Town programme 
and work in Banbury. Additional temporary 
resource has been secured for the development of 
a programme for Kidlington and to provide interim 
project management capacity. 
 
 

Environmental 
 
Variation 
£0.204m overspend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.041m) 

 
 
The forecasted pressure of £0.204m within 
Environmental Services is primarily due to staffing 
pressures and agency costs within Waste and 
Recycling, this is being closely monitored and 
managed.  
An overspend of £0.116m has arisen due to general 
vehicle maintenance expenses.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The on-month movement from November’s 
reporting is primarily due to vehicle maintenance 
expenses. 

Page 34



 The request for the £0.200m transfer from market 
risk reserve to cover the gate fees overspend has 
now been actioned.  
In addition to £0.026m increase in required vehicle 
repairs and equipment, £0.017m in employee 
costs; primarily an increase in agency staff and 
medical fees to cover long term sickness. An 
increase of £0.017m in disposal charges due to 
higher than anticipated tonnage collected. 
A reduction in bulky waste income has been offset 
by an increase in recycling credits income and a 
reduction in fuel costs of (£0.010m) along with 
further small overspends across the service. 
 
The service is looking at all options to mitigate the 
overspend including additional non-recruitment to 
vacant posts, close working with Human Resources 
regarding long term sickness, generating additional 
and progressing existing income streams and 
closer joint working and contracts with other 
Oxfordshire councils and the treatment of vehicle 
parts as stock. 

Regulatory 
 
Variation 
(£0.016m) Underspend 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
£0.000 
 

 
 
Regulatory Services and Community Safety are 
forecasting a (£0.016m) underspend – this is due to 
savings in staffing costs as some posts remain 
unfilled following the department restructure.   

Wellbeing & Housing 
 
Variation  
(£0.100m) underspend  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.000m) 
 

 
 
The services continue to actively manage 
pressures arising from operating front line services 
and flexing programme delivery, however 
pressures on finances are increasing on a range of 
activities but to date we have managed to contain 
them.  
 
 
Pressures have been defrayed through operational 
efficiency and effective use of grants. 
Continued effort to redress these balances are 
being taken by rescheduling some activity and 

Page 35



reducing developmental expenditure in core 
budgets. 

Capital: 
 

 
 
 

Service 
Budget 

£m 

Forecast 
Spend 

24/25 £m 

Re-
profiled 
beyond 
2024/25 

£m 

 
Variance 
to Budget 

£m 

Prior 
Month 

Variance 
to Budget 

£m 

Planning & Development 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Growth & Economy 0.780 0.780 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Environmental 1.185 1.189 0.000 0.004 0.004 

Wellbeing & Housing 6.530 6.009 0.165 (0.356) (0.356) 

Regulatory 0.265 0.265 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Total 8.760 8.243 0.165 (0.352) (0.352) 

 
For detailed explanation and variances please see appendix 1. 

 
 
 
 

0.000

2.000

4.000

6.000

8.000

Planning &
Development

Growth &
Economy

Environmental Wellbeing &
Housing

Regulatory

£
m

Communities - Capital

Budget
£m

Forecast Spend 24/25 £m Re-profiled beyond 2024/25
£m

Page 36



Executive Matters 
 

 
 
Revenue: 
 
Executive Matters is reporting a (£0.115m) underspend against the budget of 
£4.293m (-2.7%). 
 
 

Executive Matters 
 
 
 
Variation  
(£0.115m) underspend 
 
 
 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.000m) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Executive Matters are forecasting an over recovery of net 
interest of (£0.115m). 

 
 
 
 

Variance
June 2024 -

£m

Variance
August

2024 - £m

Variance
September

2024

Variance
October

2024

Variance
November

2024

Variance
December

2024

Executive Matters 0.013 (0.115) (0.115) (0.115) (0.115) (0.115)

Policy Contingency 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.195) (0.195)

(0.250)

(0.200)

(0.150)

(0.100)

(0.050)

0.000

0.050

Forecast Variance - Executive Matters 

Page 37



Policy Contingency 
 
Policy Contingency is forecasting an underspend of (£0.195m) against a budget of 
£2.430m, (-8.0%) 

 
Policy Contingency 
 
Variation  
(£0.195m) Underspend 
 
 
Variation to 
November’s Forecast 
(£0.000m) 
 
 

 
 
Policy Contingency are currently forecasting an 
underspend of (£0.195).  This relates to the ability to 
release contingency now that the pay award has been 
agreed for 2024/25. 
 
Due to reprofiling of capital projects within the 
programme this has resulted in an underspend of 
(£1.600m) which is proposed to be moved to the 
Projects Reserve as part of this month’s reporting.  
Further detail is held within appendix 5.  

 

Page 38



Appendix 3 - Virement Summary 

Virement Movement 

This table shows the movement in Net Budget from November 2024 to December 

2024. 

Virements - Movement in Net Budget £m 

Directorate Net Budget - November 2024 18.891 

Directorate Net Budget - December 2024 20.964 

Movement 2.073 

  

Breakdown of Movements £m 

    

Redundancy costs funded from Policy 
Contingency - IT (£0.189) 

Redundancy costs funded from Policy 
Contingency - Environmental Services (£0.085) 

24/25 Pay Award from Policy Contingency (£1.099) 

Use of Policy contingency to mitigate gate 
fees (£0.200) 

Use of Policy Contingency for the cost of 
appeals (£0.500) 

    

    

Total (2.073) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 39



Aged Debt Summary 

The below graph shows the movement in sundry aged debt as at the end of 

December 2024. 

 

The financial regulations make provision for writing off debts that are bad, 

uneconomical to collect or irrecoverable. The Council maintains a number of bad 

debt provisions in the anticipation that debts will become bad and these once agreed 

are charged to the relevant provision or cost centre.   

There is a provision within the council for sundry bad debt totalling £0.938m that is 

sufficient and by writing off the amount of debt mentioned in this report will not cause 

the provision to be exceeded. This provision is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure 

that we have sufficient within it. 

Aged Debt Write Off Summary:  

 £m 

Sundry Debts previously written off 0.305 

Sundry Debts written off in December 2024 under 

£0.005m details in Appendix 6 

0.003 

Sundry Debts over £0.005m to be written off via 

committee details in Appendix 6 

0.107 

Total write offs in financial year 2024/25 0.415 

 

Housing Benefit Write off Summary: 

 £m 

Housing Benefit previously written off 0.035 

0.000

0.200

0.400

0.600

0.800

1.000

1.200

1.400

1.600

1.800

Not yet Due 1-30 Days
Overdue

31 – 60 days 
Overdue

61 – 90 days 
Overdue

91 – 120 days 
Overdue

121+ Days
Overdue.

£
m

Days

Aged Debt Summary - December 2024

December 2024 September 2024

Page 40



Housing Benefit Overpayments to be written off via 

committee approval, details in Appendix 6 

0.020 

Housing Benefit Overpayments due to written off in 

February 2025 under S151 Delegation 

0.000 

Total write offs in financial year 2024/2025 0.055 

 

Council Tax Write off Summary: 

 £m 

Council Tax previously written off 0.194 

Council Tax to be written off via Committee 

Approval details in Appendix 6 

0.015 

Council Tax due to written off in February 2025 

under S151 Delegation 

0.102 

Total write offs in financial year 2024/2025 0.311 

 

 

Non-Domestic Rates Write off Summary: 

 £m 

Non-Domestic Rates previously written off 0.141 

Non-Domestic Rates written off via Committee 

Approval, details in Appendix 6 

0.107 

Non-Domestic Rates due to written off in February 

2025 under S151 Delegation 

0.093 

Total write offs in financial year 2024/2025 0.341 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 - Funding for 2024/25 
  

Specific Funding received since budget was set: 
 

Dept. Grant Name Funding 

   £ 

DLUHC UK Shared Prosperity Fund (£0.658) 

DLUHC Homelessness Prevention Grant (£0.763) 

DLUHC Electoral Integrity Programme New Burdens Funding (£0.050) 

DLUHC Rough Sleeping Initiative (£0.271) 

DLUHC Domestic Abuse Grant (£0.037) 

DLUHC Redmond Review Implementation (£0.024) 

DLUHC Tenant Satisfaction Measures New Burdens (£0.005) 

DLUHC Local Authority Housing Fund Round 3 (£0.005) 

Home Office Syrian Resettlement Scheme (£0.135) 

Home Office Afghan Relocations and Assistance Policy (£1.723) 

Home Office Young Women and Girls Funding (£0.021) 

DSIT Innovate UK (£0.005) 

     

    (£3.697) 
 
Grants included as part of Budget setting: 
 

Grant Name £m 

Homeless Prevention Grant (0.517) 

Afghan Resettlement Scheme (0.244) 

Syrian Refugee Initiative (0.183) 

Ukrainian Refugees Resettling in the UK (0.417) 

Asylum Seeker Dispersal Grant (0.029) 

Chief Executive Total (1.391) 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (0.829) 

Communities Total (0.829) 

NNDR Cost of Collection Allowance (0.231) 

Rent Allowances (25.004) 

Resources Total (25.235) 

  (27.455) 

Funding Guarantee Grant (2.839) 

Services Grant  (0.154) 

Corporate Total (2.993) 

  (30.448) 

Page 43



Business Rates Retained Scheme (9.647) 

New Homes Bonus (1.375) 

Revenue Support Grant (0.328) 

Funding Total (11.350) 

Government Grants Grand Total (41.798) 

 

Page 44



 

Appendix 5 - Reserves and Grant Funding 
 
Uses of/ (Contributions to) Reserves 
 
Specific requests  

 

Directorate Type Description Reason Amount £m 

Resources Earmarked 
Transformation 
Reserve Request 

To fund the transformation ongoing 
projects across the council. 

0.120 

Resources Earmarked Projects Reserve  
To move unspent MRP to the 
Projects Reserve 

(1.600) 

   Total Earmarked Reserves (1.480) 

Communities Grant 
Homelessness 
Prevention Grant 

To fund the ongoing temporary 
accommodation costs and also the 
hardship prevention discretionary 
costs 

0.164 

   Total Ringfenced Grants 0.164 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Budget Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 - Capital December 2024
	In Year Capital Projects - December 2024
	Total Capital Project - December 2024

	Appendix 2 - Detailed Revenue Narrative on Forecast December 2024
	Appendix 3 - Virements  & Aged Debt December 2024
	Appendix 4 - Funding December 2024
	Appendix 5 - Use of Reserves and Grant funding December 2024

	9 Monthly Monitoring Report - Exempt Appendix

